
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Madia Afzal 
 (Tel: 07738 263933   Email: afzalm@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 8th June 2022 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
A multi-locational meeting of the Cabinet will be held in Penallta House, and via Microsoft Teams on 
Wednesday, 15th June, 2022 at 2.00 pm to consider the matters contained in the following agenda.  You 
are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a minimum notice period of 3 working days is required should 
you wish to do so.  A simultaneous translation will be provided on request.  
 
Members of the public or Press may attend in person at Penallta House or may view the meeting live via 
the following link: https://civico.net/caerphilly   
  
This meeting will be live-streamed and a recording made available to view via the Council’s website, 
except for discussions involving confidential or exempt items.  Therefore, the images/audio of those 
individuals present and/or speaking will be publicly available to all via the recording on the Council 
website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Pages 
  

1  To receive apologies for absence. 
  

 
2  Declarations of Interest. 

  
 

Public Document Pack

https://civico.net/caerphilly
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/


Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on the agenda in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council's Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers.   

 
To approve and sign the following minutes: -  
 
3  Cabinet held on 6th April. 

1 - 4  
 

4  Cabinet held on 13th April. 
5 - 8  

 
To note the Cabinet Forward Work Programme. 
 
5  Cabinet Forward Work Programme. 

9 - 10  
 

To receive and consider the following reports on which executive decisions are required: -   
 
6  Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 2021-2022. 

11 - 48  
 

 
Circulation: 
Councillors C. Andrews, S. Cook, Miss E. Forehead, N. George, Ms P. Leonard, S. Morgan, C. Morgan, 
J. Pritchard, J. Simmonds and Mrs E. Stenner 
 
And Appropriate Officers 
 
HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION 

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting, 
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed.  Minutes of Meetings including details 
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. 
You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and 
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed. 
For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy 

Notice on our website or contact Legal Services by email griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028. 

 
 

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk


  

 

CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF THE REMOTE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
ON WEDNESDAY, 6TH APRIL 2022 AT 10:30A.M. 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Councillor P. Marsden (Leader) - Chair 

 

Councillors: 
 

S. Cook (Social Care and Housing), N. George (Waste, Public Protection and Street Scene), 
C. Gordon (Corporate Services), J. Pritchard (Infrastructure and Property), Mrs E. Stenner 
(Performance, Economy and Enterprise) and A. Whitcombe (Sustainability, Planning and Fleet). 
 
 

Together with: 
 

D. Street (Corporate Director, Social Services and Housing), R. Edmunds (Corporate Director 
Education and Corporate Services) and M.S. Williams (Corporate Director – Economy and 
Environment). 

 
Also in Attendance: 

 
R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer), A. West (21st Century Schools, 
Admissions and Exclusions Manager), S. Richards (Head of Education Planning and Strategy), 
R. Hartshorn (Head of Public Protection, Community & Leisure Services), L. Morgan (Licensing 
Manager), R. Salter (Relay Taxis), G. Edwards (Caerphilly County Borough Taxi Drivers 
Association), M. Harris (Committee Support Officer/Chauffer) and M. Afzal (Committee Services 
Officer). 
 
         And: 
 
Cllr. K. Etheridge. 

 
 

RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 
 

The Leader reminded those present that the meeting was being filmed but would not be live 
streamed, however a recording would be available following the meeting via the Council’s 
website – Click Here To View.  She advised that decisions would be made by Microsoft Forms.   

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr R. Whiting (Learning and Leisure), C. Harrhy 
(Chief Executive) and S. Harris (Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer). 

 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of 
the meeting.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings


  

 
3. CABINET – 23RD MARCH 2022 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 23rd March 2022 be approved as 
a correct record. 
 

4. CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME – TO NOTE 
 

 Cabinet was provided with the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, which detailed the 
scheduled reports until the 13th of April 2022.  Members were reminded that the Cabinet Forward 
Work Programme is a working document and therefore subject to change.  
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the Forward Work 
Programme be noted. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Forward Work Programme be noted. 
 

 
5. 21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS - BAND B PROPOSAL - STATUTORY OBJECTION REPORT 

FOR: LLANCAEACH JUNIOR SCHOOL/LLANFABON INFANTS SCHOOL. 
  

Consideration was given to the report which provided an update on the 21st Century Schools 
Band B proposal in respect of the amalgamation of Llancaeach Junior School and Llanfabon 
Infants School to create a new 3–11-year Primary School on the existing Llanfabon Infants 
School site. Members were advised that no statutory objections were received during the 
Objection Period and that the Authority was looking to proceed to the planning application stage 
and full business case submission. 

 
Members were pleased to note that no objections were received and welcomed the next stage 
of the developments.  

 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 

in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: -  
 

a) The information contained in the Objection Period Summary Report be noted. 
 

b) The recommendation to proceed to the Planning Application Stage be approved. 
 

c) The recommendation to proceed to Full Business Case submission to Welsh 
Government be approved. 

 
 
6. SOCIAL CARE PROVIDER FEE INCREASES 2022/2023. 
  

Consideration was given to the report which informed Cabinet of the financial pressures and 
difficulties being experienced by providers of commissioned care and support services across 
the borough and UK.  
 
The report also proposed fee uplifts for the different categories of commissioned care and 
support sector providers to address the financial pressures within the sector and recommended 
that £3,755,886 be allocated from the social care growth funding held within the Corporate 
Finance budget to fund the impact of the proposed fee uplifts. 
 

Page 2



  

Cabinet was advised that providers were in financial difficulties prior to the pandemic and Welsh 
Government hardship funding had been pivotal in keeping providers viable. It was noted that 
Welsh Government funding ceased on the 31st of March and to maintain and support 
commissioned care providers, it was necessary for the authority as Commissioner to step in.   
 
Members were advised that discussions between the authority and Welsh Government 
regarding an increased level of funding were ongoing and would be seeking to see carers paid 
on or above the Real Living Wage of £9.90 per hour. The Association of Directors of Social 
Services were recommending a wage rate of £12 per hour, although this was noted to be some 
way away.  Cabinet was advised that the recommendations before them would mean a viable 
independent sector for the next 12 months. 
 
Cabinet supported the proposals within the report, and it was felt that the recommendations 
would safeguard commissioned care, support sector providers, and give reassurance to the 
public.  
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 
in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: -  
 

1. The financial pressures facing the social care sector be acknowledged and the 
proposed fee increases summarised in paragraph 5.4 be agreed. 

 
2. £3,755,886 be allocated from the social care growth funding held within the 

Corporate Finance budget to fund the impact of the recommended fee uplifts set out 
in paragraph 5.4.  

 
 
7. PROPOSAL TO INCREASE HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE TARIFFS. 
 

Consideration was given to the report which informed Cabinet of requests received from the 

licensed trade for an increase in the Tariff of Fares for Hackney Carriages. The report 

highlighted the results of a consultation exercise with the trade on an amended tariff and sought 

Cabinet approval to advertise a proposed amended tariff of fares for a statutory 14-day public 

consultation.  

The Cabinet Member for Waste, Public Protection and Street Scene felt it was important to 

address the misconceptions surrounding the proposed increase and stressed that the increase 

was driven by the Taxi Drivers Association and not Members of the local authority.  

Cabinet heard representations from Mr. R. Salter of Relay Taxis and Mr. G. Edwards of 

Caerphilly County Borough Taxi Drivers Association.  

Mr Edwards highlighted that the report had been considered by the Licensing Committee at its 

meeting on 25th March 2022 and advised that the Association was looking to partner with the 

Licensing Committee to propose smaller increases on a more regular basis as opposed to every 

four years. Mr Edwards welcomed the increase but felt that the proposal did not meet the 

ongoing increase to fuel prices.  

In respect of the smaller but more frequent increases to the tariff of fares, Mr Edwards believed 

this would mitigate negative public feedback. Mr Edwards thanked Cabinet for considering the 

report and the Leader invited Mr Salter to share his views on the proposal.  

Mr Salter felt that the proposed increase would place daytime drivers at a disadvantage in 

comparison to weekend drivers. Thus, it was felt that a 30-40p increase to the weekday tariff 

would be of greater assistance to the taxi trade. Furthermore, Mr Salter anticipated that the 

Page 3



  

increase would only exacerbate further the cost-of-living crisis for customers and might well 

negatively impact on the overall security and viability of the taxi trade. 

The Leader thanked Mr Salter for his representations. 

Officers outlined the two different proposals, and it was stressed that both proposals were 

subject to consultation. Furthermore, Cabinet was advised that the proposal had been 

considered by the Licensing Committee who had unanimously voted in favour of the Proposal 

B set out in Appendix G. 

Cabinet was advised that the Taxi and General Licensing Committee had listened to the 

representations and that every effort had been made to settle on a balance. Members were 

assured that the viewpoints of both parties had been taken into consideration when making a 

recommendation to Cabinet. 

Clarification on the tariff of fares during the bank holiday period was sought. The Officer referred 

Cabinet to page 63 of the reports pack which detailed the amount passengers would pay during 

the bank holiday period. 

Members welcomed the report and were supportive of its recommendations. Overall, it was felt 

a more regular review of tariffs would enable the Authority to take the appropriate action and 

gain a better understanding of driver and public needs.  

The Leader thanked Mr Salter and Mr Edwards for their contributions.  

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 
in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report the tariff of fares for 
hackney carriage vehicles as detailed within Appendix G be approved for publication 
in the press for the 14 days statutory public consultation period in accordance with the 
view of the Taxi and General Committee as detailed in the Consultation section. 
 

 
 

The meeting closed at 11:55A.M.  
 

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the meeting held 
on 15th June 2022. 
 

____________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 4



  

 

CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF THE REMOTE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
ON WEDNESDAY, 13TH APRIL 2022 AT 10:30A.M. 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Councillor P. Marsden (Leader) - Chair 

 

Councillors: 
 

N. George (Waste, Public Protection and Street Scene), C. Gordon (Corporate Services), J. 
Pritchard (Infrastructure and Property), Mrs E. Stenner (Performance, Economy and Enterprise) 
and R. Whiting (Learning and Leisure). 
 
 

Together with: 
 

C. Harrhy (Chief Executive), R. Edmunds (Corporate Director Education and Corporate 
Services) and M.S. Williams (Corporate Director – Economy and Environment). 
 
 

Also in Attendance: 
 

R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer), M. Lloyd (Head of Infrastructure), 
A. West (21st Century Schools, Admissions and Exclusions Manager), S. Richards (Head of 
Education, Planning and Strategy), G. Roberts (Team Leader, Transport Officer ITU), J. 
Southcombe (Finance Manager), J. Carpenter (Finance Manager, Revenues), M. James 
(Principal Valuer), M. Harris (Committee Support Officer/Chauffer) and M. Afzal (Committee 
Services Officer). 
 
   
RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The Leader reminded those present that the meeting was being filmed but would not be live 
streamed, however a recording would be available following the meeting via the Council’s 
website – Click Here To View.  She advised that decisions would be made by Microsoft Forms.   

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  
 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr A. Whitcombe (Sustainability, Planning and 

Fleet), D. Street (Corporate Director for Social Services and Housing) and S. Harris (Head of 
Financial Services & S151 Officer). 

  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of 
the meeting.  

 
3. CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME – TO NOTE 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings


  

 Cabinet was provided with the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, which detailed the 
scheduled reports until the 13th of April 2022.  Members were reminded that the Cabinet Forward 
Work Programme is a working document and therefore subject to change.  
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the Forward Work 
Programme be noted. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Forward Work Programme be noted. 
 

 
4. WITHDRAWAL FROM CRUMLIN INSTITUTE. 
  
 Consideration was given to the report which updated Cabinet on the current position regarding 

dilapidation costs linked to the termination of the lease for Crumlin Institute. The report also 
sought Cabinet approval to settle with the landlord with additional costs being funded from the 
projected underspend in the 2021/22 Education and Lifelong Learning revenue budget. 

 
 It was noted that Cabinet had supported a recommendation to progress withdrawal from the 

lease agreement relating to the Crumlin Institute building at its meeting on the 9th of June 2021. 
This approval supported the necessary lease withdrawal deadline of 25th June 2021. To support 
this exit, funding of £195k was earmarked, as due to the terms of the lease the Authority would 
be liable to undertake dilapidation works or secure a cash settlement arrangement in leu of the 
dilapidation work. A surveyor has been engaged to assess the value of the settlement to be 
agreed with the Landlord to enable Caerphilly CBC to exit the lease agreement and return the 
building to the Landlord. Following assessment and negotiation between the parties, a sum of 
£300k was proposed. Cabinet noted that this was an additional cost of £105k to the initial 
estimate. 

  
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 

in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 

 
RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer's report the settlement sum of 
£300k be approved with the additional cost of £105k being funded from the Education 
& Lifelong Learning revenue budget projected underspend for 2021/22.  

 
 
5. WELSH GOVERNMENT COST OF LIVING SUPPORT SCHEME. 
  

Consideration was given to the report which provided Cabinet with details of the Welsh 
Government Cost of Living Support Scheme and presented proposals for consideration in 
respect of the discretionary element of the Scheme.  
 
The package of support included £152m to provide a £150 cost of living payment to eligible 
households and £25m to provide discretionary support for other purposes related to living costs.  
Cabinet noted that this would put a suite of measures in place to assist residents throughout 
the borough who were facing a cost-of-living crisis. 

 
The Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer advised that Cabinet Members were not 
required to declare an interest in relation to the report as the proposals were anticipated to affect 
majority of council taxpayers within individual wards as well as the County Borough as a whole. 

 
The report was welcomed by Cabinet Members as a way of supporting those struggling with 
escalating living costs. 
 
 

Page 6



  

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 
in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: -  

 
1. The details of the WG Cost of Living Support Scheme be noted.  

 
2. The proposals in the report in respect of the discretionary element of the Scheme be 
considered and approved.  

 
 
6. HOME TO SCHOOL/COLLEGE CONTRACTS – CONTRACT VARIATION. 
 
 Consideration was given to the report which sought Cabinet approval for additional funds to 

support the variations of the Council’s home to school transport service contracts. The contracts 
will be varied in accordance with UK Public Contract Regulations and the Council’s Standing 
Orders for Contracts. 

 
Cabinet was advised that the cost of fuel has increased by approximately 25% since the 
beginning of the new academic year in September 2021. Thus, home to school transport 
operators have requested an increase to their contract rates due to the increasing costs they 
are having to pay. It was noted that all other local authorities were looking at increases and the 
impact of the global market supply chain.  In order to maintain a robust supply chain, the Council 
were working with local operators to meet the challenge that the fuel crisis presents.  To ensure 
there would be no disruption in service for the remainder of the academic year agreement had 
been sought to vary existing rates to reflect the increase costs being experienced by the 
transport industry. 

 
The impact of increasing fuel costs on transport operators was recognised by Cabinet Members 
and to ensure continuation of service provision, it was agreed that the recommendations in the 
report be approved.  

 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 
in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: -  

 
1. Additional funds to support the necessary contract variations in relation to home to 

school transport be agreed.  
 

2. A one-off in-year virement of £172k from the RCCO budget in Miscellaneous 
Finance for 2022-23 be approved.  

 
 
7.        PUBLIC INTEREST TEST. 
 

Members considered the Public Interest Test and concluded that on balance the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information and it 
was: -  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely disclosure to them 
of exempt information as defined in paragraph 14 of Schedule12A of the Local Government Act 
1972.  
 

 

Page 7



  

8.        21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS BAND B PROPOSAL – UPDATE YSGOL GYMRAEG CWM 
GWYDDON. 

 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 
in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 

 
RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report the recommendations 
at 3.1 (a) and (b) be approved.  
 

 
 

The meeting closed at 10:57A.M.  
 

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the meeting held 
on 15th June 2022. 
 

____________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 8



Cabinet Forward Work Programme – 8th June 2022 

15/06/2022 
14:00 

Welsh Language Standards Annual 
Report 2022 

For Cabinet to note the content of the annual 
report and endorse the publication of the 
information as a record of progress towards, and 
compliance with, the relevant Welsh Language 
Standards.  Once approved the report will be 
published on the Council's website by the 
statutory deadline of 30 June 2022.  

Cullinane, Anwen; Cllr. George, Nigel; 

29/06/2022 
13:00 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 
Round 2 Levelling Up Fund 
Submissions 

To update Cabinet on the UK Government’s recent 
announcements of Round 2 of the UK 
Government’s Levelling Up programme and to 
outline the opportunities and constraints for the 
Council presented by this new round of funding.  

Williams, Mark S; Cllr. Pritchard, James; 

29/06/2022 
13:00 

Shared Prosperity fund To provide Cabinet with an update on the Shared 
Prosperity Fund from UK Government. 

Kyte, Rhian; Cllr. Pritchard, James; 

29/06/2022 
13:00 

Plateau 4 Oakdale - Draft Heads of 
Terms 

To seek Cabinet approval to agree to the sale of 
the remaining undeveloped land at Oakdale 
Business Park Plateau 4 to facilitate the relocation 
of an existing company to the site to 
accommodate their growth and expansion plans 
and retain highly skilled and well paid jobs in the 
county borough. 
  

Kyte, Rhian; Cllr. Pritchard, James/Cllr. 
George, Nigel; 

P
age 9 A

genda Item
 5



Cabinet Forward Work Programme – 8th June 2022 

29/06/2022 
13:00 

Regeneration Project Board - Project 
Proposals 

To consider the allocation of £60,000 of the Non-
Community Council Community Infrastructure 
Levy funding for the Penmaen Ward to the 
Engineering Projects Group to implement a car 
park extension at Oakdale Sports Pavilion. 

Kyte, Rhian; Cllr. Pritchard, James; 

 

P
age 10



 
 

CABINET – 15TH JUNE 2022 
 
 
SUBJECT:  WELSH LANGUAGE STANDARDS ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR, EDUCATION AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To inform members and seek their endorsement of the progress made during the financial 

year 2021-2022 against four specific areas of Welsh language work, as required under 
the regulatory framework for implementing the Welsh Language Standards. 
 

1.2 The report will be published online by the deadline date of 30 June 2022, as required by 
Welsh Language Standard 158. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Council has a statutory duty to produce an annual monitoring report on implementing 

Welsh language issues under current legislation and in compliance with Standard 158. 
 
2.2 The information required for 2021-2022 covers four required key areas. 
 

Detail of Reporting Requirement 
Standard No. (and 

sub-clause) 

Complaints from the Public 
 
The annual report must include the number of complaints that you 
received during that year which related to your compliance with 
the standards with which you were under a duty to comply. 

147, 148, 149, 156, 

158(2), 162, 164(2), 

168(a), 170(2)(d) 

Staff Language Skills 
 
The number of employees who have Welsh language skills at the 
end of the year in question (on the basis of the records kept in 
accordance with standard 151);  

170(2)(a) 

151 

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Detail of Reporting Requirement 
Standard No. (and 

sub-clause) 

Welsh Medium Training Provision 
 
The number of members of staff who attended training courses 
you offered in Welsh during the year (on the basis of the records 
you kept  
in accordance with standard 152); 
 
If a Welsh version of a course was offered by you during that 
year, the percentage of the total number of staff attending the 
course who attended the Welsh version (on the basis of the 
records you kept in accordance with standard 152). 

170(2)(b) 

170(2)(c) 

152 

Recruiting to Empty Posts 
 
The number of new and vacant posts that you advertised during 
the year which were categorised as posts where: 
 
(i) Welsh language skills were essential 
(ii) Welsh language skills needed to be learnt when appointed to 

the post 
(iii) Welsh language skills were desirable, 
(iv) Welsh language skills were not necessary 
 
(on the basis of the records you kept in accordance with standard 
154);  

170(2)(ch),  

154 

 
2.3 The report provides an update to Members on the Council’s current position in relation to 

the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 statutory requirements.  
 
2.4 The report outlines the good progress made by service areas in embedding arrangements 

for delivering services through the medium of Welsh and increasing the Welsh language 
skills capacity of the workforce. 

 
2.5 It is evident from the content of the report that the work done to date is moving in the right 

direction.  The good progress and momentum will be maintained by continuing to work 
with partners and responding to help, advice and best practice from the Welsh Language 
Commissioner and other regional and national bodies. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Cabinet Members note the content of the annual report and 

endorse the publication of this information as a record of progress towards, and 
compliance with, the relevant Welsh Language Standards. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 As per Standard 158 of the Council’s Compliance Notice, the Council must; 
 

 Produce an annual report which deals with the way in which it has complied with the 
service delivery standards with which it is under a duty to comply during that year. 

 Include in the annual report the number of complaints received during that year which 
relate to its compliance with the service delivery standards with which it is under a 
duty to comply. 

Page 12



 Publish the annual report on its website by 30 June each year. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1  The annual report highlights the following performance information; 
 

 We received 1 Welsh language complaint during this financial year.  The complaint 
raised a number of issues including; 
- Electoral Service letter with English information in the Welsh version,  
- the complaint could not be dealt with in Welsh by telephone,  
- the Complaints webpage only provides an email address as contact details 
- the Chatbot does not work properly on the website. 

 
 All points were addressed in our response: 

- Electoral Services acknowledged the error and made the necessary amendments 
to the letter template 

- Electoral Services have appointed a Welsh speaking member of staff 
- The contact details on the Complaints webpage have been updated 
- It was explained to the complainant that the Chatbot was introduced during the 

Covid-19 lockdown to signpost members of the public to the relevant Covid-19 
information.  The Chatbot will be ‘trained’ to deal with other Council services 
moving forward, including Complaints. 

 

 The Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 2017-2022 was reviewed and a full report 
can be seen in Appendix 1 of the Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 2021-
2022. 

 

 The Council developed a replacement Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 2022-
2027.  The strategy was approved by Cabinet in March 2022, and has been 
published on the Council’s website.  The strategy will be officially launched at Ffiliffest 
– Caerphilly’s annual Welsh Language Festival on 11 June 2022. 

 There was another slight increase in the number of Welsh speaking staff recorded on 
our HR system for 2021-2022 across all 3 directorates. 

 

 We undertook a number of different promotion activities, including the launch of the 
Make One Small Change Campaign, Diwrnod Shwmae and Welsh Language Rights 
Day.  We also worked alongside Careers Wales to develop videos promoting careers 
within Caerphilly Council and helping to raise students’ awareness of the importance 
of having Welsh language skills to use in different workplaces. 

 

 Sadly we saw a significant dip in the number of staff learning Welsh with only 35 
registered.  This is the lowest figure we’ve ever recorded since we started collecting 
this data back in 2001.   

 
There is some work that needs to be done here, especially at a time when having 
staff with Welsh language skills is so important to deliver bilingual services, and the 
Welsh Language Commissioner’s Office closely monitoring our progress. 
 

 Out of 850 new and vacant posts advertised only 10 of these were advertised as 
Welsh Essential.  24 posts were advertised where Welsh language skills needed to 
be learnt when appointed; 810 posts advertised as Welsh Desirable; and 6 where no 
Welsh language skills were required.  These 6 posts were advertised as so due in 
part to existing staff already possessing Welsh language skills within teams or service 
areas.   
 

Page 13



All posts are advertised with a default of Welsh desirable as a minimum. 
 

5.2 Conclusion 
 

It is evident from the content of the report that there has been some progress during 
2021-2022.  Over the next 12 months we will be ensuring services are being delivered in 
line with the Welsh Language Standards.  We will also work with service areas to identify 
and address any Welsh language training or Welsh language skills requirements to 
deliver services. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 No assumptions have been made in this report. 
 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 Full Equalities and Welsh language assessments and consultation were undertaken on 

the Strategic Equality Plan and the Five Year Welsh Language Strategy when they were 
being developed; therefore no full assessment has been made on this annual report.   

 
 The report is an assessment of progress made by the Council under the Welsh Language 

Standards and in line with associated actions in the Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 
and the Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027. 

 
7.2 Welsh language is a crosscutting theme of the Well-being Goals within the Well-being of 

Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 and impacts on every Council policy, function and 
procedure, covering those aimed at the public and internal policies covering the Council’s 
staff members.  The report contributes to the following Well-being Goals: 

- A more equal Wales 
- A Wales of cohesive communities 
- A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

 
7.3 The Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024, which includes Welsh language and compliance 

with the Welsh Language Standards as a strategic equality objective in its own right, has 
direct links with a number of other current policies and strategies, both within the Council 
and in terms of partnership working. 

 
7.4 There are also Welsh Government strategies or regulations that the Council’s Welsh 

Language work links to, including “Mwy Na Geiriau / More Than Words” (the National 
Health and Social Care Welsh Language Strategy), “Cymraeg 2050: A Million Welsh 
Speakers” (Welsh Government’s Welsh language strategy) and Prosperity for All.  

 
7.5 This report ties in with the following objectives of the Corporate Plan 2018-2023; 

- Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

- Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

- Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being 
 
7.6 This report contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out above.  It is also consistent with 

the five ways of working: 
 

 Long Term – Ensuring that staff have the skills to deliver bilingual services now and in 
the future 

 Prevention – Improving services and upskilling staff will ensure that everyone 
regardless of language choice has equal access to services and thus preventing 

Page 14



complaints and Welsh Language Commissioner Investigations. 

 Integration – By providing bilingual services to the public we make everyone feel 
equal and valued.  

 Collaboration – Partnership working is key to this and assists the council in meeting its 
duties under the Welsh Language Standards.  Working in collaboration with partners 
is further evidenced in the Five Year Welsh Language Strategy. 

 Involvement – As noted under collaboration, we must involve our partners to deliver 
on the Five Year Welsh Language Strategy and to assist us with service delivery. 

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report as the annual report covers work 

already undertaken in the previous financial year.  However it should be noted that 
moving the agenda forward will incur financial implications, particularly in relation to 
Welsh language translation and training of staff. 

 
The cost of supporting staff to attend Welsh in the Workplace courses for 2021-2022, 
which assists in the delivery of bilingual Council services under the Standards, was 
£2209.00. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no personnel implications to this report, although this continues to be reviewed as 

the work of implementing the Welsh Language Standards progresses.  This is relevant to 
Section 7 of Appendix A, which focuses on Recruiting to Empty Posts. 

 
9.2 No posts will be advertised without a Welsh Language Skills Assessment. 
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 All responses from consultations have been incorporated in the report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 

2011. 
 
11.2 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 
 
Author:  Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities and Welsh Language 

(cullima@caerffili.gov.uk) 
 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director – Education & Corporate Services 
Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Finance & Performance  
Cllr Philippa Leonard, Cabinet Member for Planning & Public Protection 
Sue Richards, Head of Education, Planning & Strategy  
Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer 
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
Kathryn Peters, Corporate Policy Manager 

Page 15



Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Background Papers: 

 Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 

 Compliance Notice – Section 44 Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 

 Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027 

 Various Guidance Documents (These are available electronically for information on the Policy 
Portal and on relevant website pages at www.caerphilly.gov.uk/equalities) 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 2021-2022 

Page 16

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/equalities


Appendix A 

 

Welsh Language 

Standards 

Annual Report 

2021-2022 
 

Prepared in accordance with the requirements of the  
 
 

                        
 
 

15 June 2022 
 

 

Page 17



Appendix A 
 

1 
 

Contents 
 
 

Section Page 

Introduction 2 

1. Welsh Language Standards: Action Plan 4 

2. Promotion 13 

3. Commissioner’s Assurance Report 2021-2022 18 

4. Complaints from the Public  20 

5. Staff Language Skills 22 

6. Welsh Medium Training Provision 28 

7. Recruiting to Empty Posts 30 

Appendix A – Review of the Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 
2017-2022 

 

 
This report is available in Welsh, and in other languages and formats on 
request. 
Mae’r adroddiad hwn ar gael yn Gymraeg, ac mewn ieithoedd neu fformatau 
eraill ar gais. 

Page 18



Appendix A 
 

2 
 

 
This annual monitoring report for 2021-2022 covers the four areas required under the 
regulatory framework and demonstrates the Council’s ongoing commitment to providing 
bilingual services to the public and staff members. 
 

Detail of Reporting Requirement 

Related Standard 

Number (& sub-

clause) 

Complaints from the Public 
 

The annual report must include the number of complaints that 
you received during that year which related to your compliance 
with the standards with which you were under a duty to comply. 
 

147, 148, 149, 

156, 158 (2), 

162, 164 (2), 

168 (a), 170 (2) (d) 

Staff Language Skills 
 

The number of employees who have Welsh language skills at the 
end of the year in question (on the basis of the records kept in 
accordance with standard 151). 
 

170 (2) (a) 

151 

Welsh Medium Training Provision 
 

The number of members of staff who attended training courses 
you offered in Welsh during the year (on the basis of the records 
you kept in accordance with standard 152); 
 

If a Welsh version of a course was offered by you during that 
year, the percentage of the total number of staff attending the 
course who attended the Welsh version (on the basis of the 
records you kept in accordance with standard 152). 
 

170 (2) (b) 

170 (2) (c) 

152 

Recruiting to Empty Posts 
 

The number of new and vacant posts that you advertised during 
the year which were categorised as posts where: 
 

(i) Welsh language skills were essential 
(ii) Welsh language skills needed to be learnt when 

appointed to the post 
(iii) Welsh language skills were desirable, 
(iv) Welsh language skills were not necessary 

 

(on the basis of the records you kept in accordance with standard 
154) 
 

170 (2) (ch)  

154 

  

Introduction 

Page 19



Appendix A 
 

3 
 

On 8 October 2020, the Council adopted a new Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024.  Six of 
the seven Strategic Equality Objectives, as listed below, include Welsh language 
implications: 
 

Equality 
Objective 1 

Service Planning and Delivery – Understand and remove the 
barriers people face when accessing services 

Equality 
Objective 2 

Education, Skills and Employment – Improve education 
opportunities for all 

Equality 
Objective 3 

Community Cohesion – Promote and facilitate inclusive and 
cohesive communities 

Equality 
Objective 4 

Inclusive Engagement and Participation – Engage with citizens to 
encourage participation, to have their voices heard when planning 
service delivery 

Equality 
Objective 5 

Welsh Language – To ensure the Welsh speaking public can access 
services that comply with the statutory requirements 

Equality 
Objective 6 

Inclusive, Diverse and Equal Workforce – Create a workforce 
which reflects and respects the diversity of the communities within the 
county borough 

 
 
The Council’s Cabinet and Corporate Management Team have been actively involved in 
discussions and debates around the implementation of the Welsh language Standards 
since January 2014.  A number of reports and presentations have been presented in 
order to keep them fully informed of ongoing improvements in the provision of services 
through the Welsh language. 
  

Page 20



Appendix A 
 

4 
 

1. Welsh Language Standards: Action Plan 
 
Since the Welsh Language Standards were introduced on 30 March 2016, we have 
developed a Compliance Work Programme to ensure that services we deliver are in 
accordance with the Standards, that staff are aware of their obligations and that they 
have the required language skills where possible. 
 
The Compliance Work Programme is summarised below: 
 
Correspondence - Standards 4, 5 & 7 
These standards relate to correspondence, which must be bilingual if we do not know 
language choice or are sending letters out to a number of people regarding the same 
subject matter.  We must ensure that out letterhead is also compliant. 
 
Action taken: 
 FACTSHEET for staff – General Correspondence 
 Bilingual auto-signatures on emails for all staff on email along with the following 

statement: 
Gallwch ohebu mewn unrhyw iaith neu fformat.Ni fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn creu 
unrhyw oedi. 
Correspondence may be in any language or format.Corresponding in Welsh will not 
lead to any delay. 

 Letterhead templates in place. 
 
 
Telephone – Standards 8, 9, 11, 14, 16, 17, 19, 20, 21 & 22 
These standards relate to how we deal with telephone calls and that a bilingual greeting 
is given.  Staff must be equipped with the relevant language skills to deal with calls in 
Welsh, and if they are unable, that they know who the Welsh speakers are that are able 
to deal with the matter, and how to transfer calls.  If no Welsh speaker is available to 
provide the subject specific information the call can be put through to a non-Welsh 
speaker. 
 
We must state, when we publish main telephone numbers that we welcome calls in 
Welsh and all our automated telephone systems must be bilingual. 
 
Action taken: 
 FACTSHEET for staff– Telephone Greetings. 
 Training delivered to staff to ensure they can give basic greetings and provide 

reception services in our main locations.   
 Welcoming Welsh language calls has been published in Newsline since the June 

2017 edition.   
 Employees provided with desk stands, which are Quick Reference Guides.   
 Automated telephone messages for service areas recorded bilingually.   
 Answer machine messages for service areas recorded bilingually.  
 There have been several attempts to recruit Welsh speaking staff to the Contact 

Centre and Reception.  An additional Welsh speaker was appointed in March 2022. 

Page 21



Appendix A 
 

5 
 

Meetings - Standards 24, 24A, 27, 27A, 27D, 29 & 29A 
These standards are about how we invite individuals to meetings and when we must 
offer them the opportunity to use the Welsh language.  If they so wish, we must then 
arrange simultaneous translation to facilitate that meeting.   
 
If inviting more than one individual to a meeting they must all be asked if they wish to 
use the Welsh language.  However, if at least 10% wish to use Welsh then simultaneous 
translation must be arranged.  If less than 10%, the Welsh speakers must be informed 
that on this occasion we are not required to fulfil their request to speak Welsh at the 
meeting.   
 
If the meeting with the individual is regarding their well-being, and they wish to speak 
Welsh, then simultaneous translation must be provided so that the individual can speak 
in their language of choice.  Well-being meetings must be conducted with simultaneous 
translation if any attendee has requested that they use Welsh 
 
Action taken: 
 FACTSHEET for staff– Meetings with individuals. 
 When inviting individuals to a meeting services are required to include a standard 

sentence asking their language choice and if they wish to use or conduct the meeting 
through the medium of Welsh. 

 Currently using MS Teams for public meetings but actively engaged and following 
development of MS Teams to facilitate a simultaneous translation/interpretation 
channel during meetings. 

 
Public Meetings and Events – Standards 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 & 36 
Any advert or notice publicising public meetings/events/activities must state that Welsh 
can be used. 
 
Any invitations to public meetings/events/activities must be sent in Welsh and English 
and all material displayed at the public meeting must be bilingual, Welsh first. 
 
Any speakers at public meetings/events/activities must be asked if they wish to use 
Welsh, and if so simultaneous translation must be arranged.  All attendees at public 
meetings/events/activities must be informed orally that they are welcome to use Welsh 
and that simultaneous translation is available for the non-Welsh speakers. 
 
Action taken: 
 FACTSHEET for staff – Public Meetings 
 FACTSHEET for staff – Event Planning 

 Translation and Interpretation Framework in place since May 2017 for simultaneous 
translation requests.  Framework will be going to Tender during 2022 as a Dynamic 
Purchasing System (DPS) allowing greater flexibility to add new providers at any 
time. 

 Currently using MS Teams for public meetings but actively engaged and following 
development of MS Teams to facilitate a simultaneous translation/interpretation 
channel during meetings. 

  

Page 22



Appendix A 
 

6 
 

Agendas, minutes and other public documents – Standards 41 & 47 
These Standards relate to producing the following documents in Welsh; 
 Agendas and minutes for Cabinet 

 Agendas and minutes for Education for Life Scrutiny and Full Council. 
 

In addition if a document is produced for public use, and is not caught by any other 
standard it must be produced in Welsh if the subject matter suggests it should be 
produced in Welsh, or if the anticipated audience and their expectations suggests that it 
should be produced in Welsh e.g. Reports relating to Welsh medium education 
 
Action taken: 
 Producing agendas and minutes for Cabinet, Education for Life Scrutiny and Full 

Council in Welsh is current practice 
 
 
General Publications – Standards 42, 43, 44, 45, 46 & 47 
These Standards relate the following being produced in Welsh if they are for the public or 
provide information to the public;  
 licences, certificates, brochures, leaflets, pamphlets, cards, policies, strategies, 

annual reports, corporate plans, guidelines, codes of practice or any rules that apply 
to the public;  

 
Any statement that we issue to the press must be bilingual unless the statement is 
issued during an “emergency” as defined in Section 1 - Civil Contingencies Act 2004. 
 
If a document is produced for public use, and is not caught by any other standard it 
must be produced in Welsh if, the subject matter suggests it should be produced in 
Welsh or if the anticipated audience and their expectations of the audience suggests that 
it should be produced in Welsh. 
 
Action taken: 
 Producing licences, certificates, brochures, leaflets, pamphlets, cards, policies, 

strategies, annual reports, corporate plans, guidelines, codes of practice or any rules 
that apply to the public, in Welsh, is already current practice. 

 Communications Team aware regarding the issuing of public statements. 
 
  

Page 23



Appendix A 
 

7 
 

Consultation Documents – Standards 44, 91, 92 & 93 
Consultation documents must be bilingual and must consider and seek views on; 
 
1. what the effects whether positive or negative the proposal would have on; or 
2. how the proposal could be developed or revised so that it would not have negative 

effects, or so that it would have decreased negative effects on; 
 

Action taken: 
 The Integrated Impact Assessment process includes specific sections on the Welsh 

Language and Consultation and asks if considerations have been given to the Welsh 
language during the consultation process. 

 A Welsh Language in Consultation Checklist is being created so that officers 
undertaking consultation exercises are aware of their obligations. 

 
 
Website, Social Media and Electronic Devices – Standards 52, 56, 58 & 60 
Each page of the Council’s website must be bilingual, fully functional with Welsh treated 
no less favourably than the English pages.  The interface and menus on pages must be 
bilingual. 
 
Any social media accounts, which belong to the Council, must treat the Welsh language 
no less favourably than the English language. 
 
Self-service machines must treat Welsh no less favourably e.g. parking ticket machines. 
 
Action taken: 
 Audit of entire website and its functionality was completed in September 2019. 
 Staff informed of process for publishing bilingual information on Council’s website. 

 Social Media Usage Guidance includes a section on the Welsh Language Standards 
and those with accounts have been asked to acknowledge the requirements to 
comply.  Monitoring will start shortly and those not complying will be reminded of 
their obligations. 

 Any issues on any webpages are actioned with urgency. 
 Parking machines give people the option to select language choice. 
 Audit of corporate social media accounts started in March 2020 – work ongoing and 

staff reminded of compliance with Welsh Language Standards. 
 The Planning Department’s upgraded Public Access Platform enables people to 

search, track and comment on Planning Applications in English and in Welsh. 
 A new website is being developed which will consider the requirements of relevant 

Welsh Language Standards. 
  

Page 24



Appendix A 
 

8 
 

Public Signage – Standards 62, 67, 70, 141, 142 & 143 
New and renewed signs must be bilingual and treat Welsh no less favourably than 
English and the Welsh language must be positioned so it is likely to be read first. 
 
Action taken: 
 New and renewed signs are compliant. 
 FACTSHEET – Signage. 
 All translation work received is returned in the correct format. This is current 

practice. 
 Welsh Language Standards Manual for CCBC Works Signage produced in 

response to the number of service requests received regarding non-compliant works 
signage. This has been shared with officers and sub-contractors. 

 
 
Visitors to Buildings – Standards 64, 65, 65, 65A, 67 & 68 
A bilingual reception service must be provided at the following Council buildings and the 
Welsh language must not be treated less favourably than the English language;  
- Penallta House 
- Bargoed, Risca, Rhymney, Blackwood, Caerphilly and Ystrad Mynach libraries;  
- Caerphilly Visitor Centre 
- Llancaiach Fawr Manor House 
- Registration Services;  
- Caerphilly, Heolddu, Newbridge and Risca leisure centres. 

 
Signs must be displayed on receptions stating the Welsh language may be used.  Welsh 
speaking staff at receptions must display a badge stating that they can speak Welsh. 
 
Action taken: 
 Since the pandemic, reception services to the public are done on an appointment 

basis.  Language preference is asked at first contact and a Welsh speaker is made 
available for the appointment should that be the language preference. 

 Training programme completed for staff on reception at Penallta House and Contact 
Centre.  Further training being rolled-out along with ongoing support. 

 Cymraeg Gwaith - 10-hour online course rolled out to staff since September 2018. 
 All venues listed under Standard 64 have been given the poster to display in 

reception areas indicating that a Welsh language service is available. 
 Information available to staff on the Corporate Policy Unit Portal. 
 All learners and Welsh speakers have received a Iaith Gwaith lanyard or badge. 

 Iaith Gwaith posters reissued to be displayed in reception area. 
  

Page 25



Appendix A 
 

9 
 

Grant Awarding – Standards 71, 72 & 72A 
Application forms for grants must be bilingual. Anything published regarding a grant 
must state that applications may be submitted in Welsh and will not be treated less 
favourably than the English, this includes timescales set for assessment etc. 
 
Action taken: 
 FACTSHEET for staff – Grants. 
 Awarding Grants Policy has been written by Grŵp Deddf and will be taken shortly to 

Corporate Management Team for discussion and adoption.  Once approval has been 
given the policy will be shared with officers who administer grants. 

 
 
Education Courses – Standards 84 & 86 
Education courses must be offered in Welsh unless an assessment under Standard 86 
has been carried out. 
 
Action taken: 
 Asking people if they wish to receive the course in Welsh at registration or enquiry 

point and then assessing the demand for the course through the medium of Welsh. 
 
 
Public Address - Standard 87 
All public addresses must be bilingual with Welsh first. 
 
Action taken: 
 Fire Alarm Test and Minute Silence messages are bilingual. 
 Emergency Evacuation – English Only. 
 Tourism has been asked to look at their events programme and the need to ensure 

that all public announcements are bilingual, Welsh first. 
 Big Cheese 2019 event – public address messages were bilingual. 

 Libraries’ automated public address messages are fully compliant. 
 
 
Policy Making – Standards 88, 89 & 90 
New, revised or reviewed policies must consider the effect the policy will have on 
opportunities to use Welsh and must not treat Welsh less favourably. 
 
Action taken: 
 An Integrated Impact Assessment has been implemented since 1 April 2021 and was 

developed using the Welsh Language Commissioner’s guidance on the Policy Making 
Standards.  The impact assessment now requires officers to give more consideration 
on the impact on the Welsh language when developing proposals and policies. 

  

Page 26



Appendix A 
 

10 
 

Intranet / Internet Pages - Standards 122 & 124 
The intranet home page must be bilingual, fully functional and treat Welsh no less 
favourably.  English language pages must state that a corresponding Welsh page is 
available, with a link if applicable. 
 
Action taken: 
 A bilingual intranet is not current practice.  There is a dedicated Welsh Language 

page on the Corporate Policy Unit Portal for staff to access. 
 A new Intranet is being developed which will consider the requirements of relevant 

Welsh Language Standards. 
 Some HR policies are available in Welsh on the HR Portal. 
 
 
Welsh Language Training and Staff Communication – Standards 128, 129, 
130, 133, 134 & 135 
We must provide training in Welsh for staff if it is provided in English on; recruitment, 
performance management, complaints, disciplinary, induction, dealing with the public, 
health and safety, on using Welsh in meetings, interviews, complaints and during 
disciplinary procedures. 
 
Staff must be given opportunities in work hours to receive basic Welsh lessons and for 
employees who manage others to receive training on using Welsh in their role as 
managers 
 
We must provide new employees with information on the Welsh language and text or 
logo for Welsh speaking employees to use in e-mail signatures that indicates they are 
willing to use Welsh, whether fluently or as a learner. 
 
Welsh language version of contact details in emails and out of office, messages must 
also be in Welsh. 
 
Action taken: 
 FACTSHEET for staff – HR 
 If any training requests were received, we would work with neighbouring councils to 

make courses viable. 
 The annual Welsh language training programme delivered since 1999, which offers 

staff a variety of different courses, including online, self-study, residential, weekly 
and Welsh Language Awareness courses.  43 learners undertook Welsh language 
training during 2021-2022. 

 Information on the Welsh language should be included in HR Induction Packs. 

 The Equalities, Welsh Language and Consultation Team are involved in the Social 
Services Induction Programme for new starters. 

 IT has provided all staff with a bilingual auto-signature for all emails. 

 IT has been unable to pre-populate a bilingual email out of office message, therefore 
desk stands were created for all staff to raise awareness of the requirement to 
ensure their out of office messages are bilingual. 

 
  

Page 27



Appendix A 
 

11 
 

Workplace Signage – Standards 141,142 and 143 
New and renewed signs must be bilingual and treat Welsh no less favourably than the 
English and the Welsh language must be positioned so it is likely to be read first. 
 
Action taken: 
 All public facing signage is bilingual and if new or renewed is produced Welsh first 
 
 
Welsh Language Strategy – Standards 145 & 146 
We must produce and publish on the website, a 5-year strategy that sets out how we 
propose to promote the Welsh language and facilitate its use more widely in the county 
borough.  The Strategy must include – 

(a) a target (in terms of the percentage of speakers in your area) for increasing or 
maintaining the number of Welsh speakers in your area by the end of the 5 year 
period concerned, and 

(b) a statement setting out how you intend to reach that target; and you must 
review the strategy and publish a revised version on your website within 5 years 
of publishing a strategy (or of publishing a revised strategy. 

 
Action taken: 
 The first Strategy was launched at Ffiliffest 2017 by the Minister for Lifelong Learning 

and Welsh Language and will cease on 31 March 2022. 
 The Council’s second Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027 will be 

implemented from 1 April 2022.  Click here to view. 
 An action plan has been developed in collaboration with stakeholders from which 

includes the council’s services areas and key Welsh language organisations, through 
the Welsh Language Forum. 

 A review of the 2017-2022 strategy has been undertaken and the full report can be 
seen in Appendix A. 

 
 
Complaints – Standards 147, 148, 149, 156, 158 (2), 162, 164 (2), 168 (a), 
170 (2) (d) 
We must keep a record of the number of complaints received which relate to compliance 
with the Standards. 
 
Action taken: 
 Reported annually in the Welsh Language Standards Annual Report, which is 

published on the Council’s website by the 30th June every year.  See Section 4 – 
Complaints from the Public. 

 Equalities and Welsh language categories added to complaints system so that we can 
monitor if any complaints have an equalities or Welsh language element.  This will 
help with annual reporting and to identify trends. 

  

Page 28

https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx


Appendix A 
 

12 
 

Publicising Compliance – Standards 161, 167, & 163 
We must publish on the website a document that states the policy making standards we 
must comply with and how we do so and this must be available in each office open to 
the public. 
 
We must publish on the website a document that states the operational standards we 
must comply with and how we do so and this must be available in each office open to 
the public. 
 
We must have arrangements in place to oversee compliance with the policy making 
standards, publish the arrangements on the website and make the document available in 
each office open to the public. 
 
Action taken: 
 See - CCBC Compliance Notice Report 30.03.16 on website. 

 Compliance Notice on website to allow any queries from the public to be dealt with 
by accessing the internet on their behalf. 

 
 

Staff Language Skills – Standards 151 & 170 (2) (a) 
We must keep a record (following an assessment) of the number of employees who have 
Welsh language skills at the end of every financial year to include the skill level. 
 
Action taken: 
 Following correspondence from the Welsh Language Commissioner, and as outlined 

in our response dated 22 February 2022, a forward work plan has been developed to 
address a number of urgent matters relating to recruitment, including compliance 
with the Welsh Language Standards.  Actions required have been scheduled to be 
completed by the 31 March 2022. 

 
 

Welsh Language Training – Standards 152, 170 (2) (b) & 170 (2) (c) 
We must keep a record of the number of staff that attend training courses through the 
medium of Welsh and the percentage of the total number of staff who attended a course 
in Welsh.  Please see Section 6 of this report. 
 
 

Recruitment – Standards 154, 170 (2) (ch) & 154 
We must keep a record of the number of new and vacant posts advertised during the 
year which were categorised as posts where. 

(a) Welsh language skills essential 
(b) Welsh language skills needed to be learnt when appointed to the post 
(c) Welsh language skills were desirable  
(d) Welsh language skills were not necessary 

 
Action taken: 
 Staff Language Skills, Welsh Language Training Provision and Recruitment are 

reported on annually in the Welsh Language Standards Annual Report, which is 
published on the Council’s website by the 30 June every year.  See Section 5, 6 and 
7 for details.  

Page 29

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/CCBCComplianceNoticeReport-30-03-16.aspx


Appendix A 
 

13 
 

 
St David’s Day 
We marked St. David’s Day this year with the following social media posts: 
 
https://twitter.com/caerphillycbc/status/1498598950546415616?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66N
CX1SQClnw 
 
https://twitter.com/caerphillycbc/status/1498704690405597185?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66N
CX1SQClnw 
 
 
Make One Small Change Campaign 
On St David’s Day we also launched a campaign where colleagues, through a year-long 
engagement campaign, will be encouraged to ‘make one small change’ to further their 
use and understanding of the Welsh language, particularly within the context of the 
workplace. 
 

 
 

The campaign will also utilise national awareness days linked to equalities and 
consultation throughout the year, encouraging colleagues to consider how they could 
‘make one small change’ in these important areas too.  
 
The key message throughout is that there are many small changes that all of us can 
make in our daily lives which, collectively, can make a big difference.  
 
Our ‘Make One Small Change’ campaign will share ideas, tips and encourage colleagues to 
make a pledge about small changes we can all make to develop a Team Caerphilly that 
has the Welsh language, equality and engagement even further at its heart. 
 
Here’s a video by our Chief Executive Christina Harrhy launching the campaign: 
https://fb.watch/cwMq8Zi8Rh/ 
 
  

2. Promotion 

Page 30

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1498598950546415616%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C4990db1a95694f8edf9b08da236895a4%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861229345993617%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=nXt97rp2R0vOEAeDLVilJPA3OLB5DDC1RGDl1TTMWRA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1498598950546415616%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C4990db1a95694f8edf9b08da236895a4%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861229345993617%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=nXt97rp2R0vOEAeDLVilJPA3OLB5DDC1RGDl1TTMWRA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1498704690405597185%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C4990db1a95694f8edf9b08da236895a4%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861229345993617%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=C8mYWcjUnL9lADhlwf6hNW37kOEjcdLhg1EABMfcqQE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1498704690405597185%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C4990db1a95694f8edf9b08da236895a4%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861229345993617%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=C8mYWcjUnL9lADhlwf6hNW37kOEjcdLhg1EABMfcqQE%3D&reserved=0
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/News/News-Bulletin/March-2022/Gwnewch-y-Pethau-Bychain-Make-One-Small-Change?lang=en-GB
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffb.watch%2FcwMq8Zi8Rh%2F&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7Cc86e158b04fe411404fa08da2368fa45%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861231371857320%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Tkyn8qeYPJ8Db5V84NnGfHCG6Qqa%2FpAdLCU3wi08qiU%3D&reserved=0


Appendix A 
 

14 
 

Diwrnod Shwmae 
Staff and members of the public were encouraged to use Welsh words and provided with 
vocabulary to use in different settings.  They were also encouraged to get involved in a 
Diwrnod Shwmae quiz hosted by Aneurin Bevan University Health Board.  
 

 
 
The Library Service also promoted Diwrnod Shwmae posting a video on their social 
media accounts - Sut ydych chi'n '#Shwmae'? | How do you '#Shwmae'? –  
https://fb.watch/cwS5NZkDkW/ 
 
 

Mae Gen i Hawl (Welsh Language Rights Day) 
On 7 December we celebrated Mae Gen i Hawl (Welsh Language Rights Day).  Again 
social media presence was key in raising awareness of the event and the rights of Welsh 
speakers when accessing services. 
 

Welsh Language Rights Day - celebrating the 'transformation' in the experiences of 
Welsh speakers 
 

https://twitter.com/caerphillycbc/status/1468262290994741250?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66N
CX1SQClnw 
 

https://twitter.com/caerphillycbc/status/1468263799442616322?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66N
CX1SQClnw  
 
As part of our promotion to raise awareness of Welsh language rights, we interviewed 
one of our school teachers who has recently completed the Welsh language Sabbatical 
Scheme. 
 
The Scheme offers periods of intensive study away from the classroom, for education 
practitioners to develop Welsh language skills and gain confidence in bilingual and 
Welsh- medium teaching methodologies. A programme of courses is delivered across 
Wales under a contract with Welsh Government. 
 
To view the interview with Miss Jones, Pontllanfraith Primary School click on the link: 
https://twitter.com/caerphillycbc/status/1468173469858816003?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66N
CX1SQClnw   

Page 31

https://fb.watch/cwS5NZkDkW/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/News/News-Bulletin/December-2021/Welsh-Language-Rights-Day-celebrating-the-transfor
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/News/News-Bulletin/December-2021/Welsh-Language-Rights-Day-celebrating-the-transfor
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1468262290994741250%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C7ec967e1a731404238d708da2366995f%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861220815539191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VXfODz8wqyH%2BfpxzyqWo8JzY2HghoQz4G0JGxAbwGeo%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1468262290994741250%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C7ec967e1a731404238d708da2366995f%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861220815539191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VXfODz8wqyH%2BfpxzyqWo8JzY2HghoQz4G0JGxAbwGeo%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1468263799442616322%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C7ec967e1a731404238d708da2366995f%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861220815539191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qgV%2BIGF6seH0iSnQQMFctuA5vEFHjs2szTdC0OI6NWs%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1468263799442616322%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C7ec967e1a731404238d708da2366995f%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861220815539191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qgV%2BIGF6seH0iSnQQMFctuA5vEFHjs2szTdC0OI6NWs%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1468173469858816003%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C7ec967e1a731404238d708da2366995f%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861220815539191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=J%2B%2FPeTW0%2BBkSPX4IKu7m%2BfogxHYNSyNNGRIap4o%2FDls%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc%2Fstatus%2F1468173469858816003%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C7ec967e1a731404238d708da2366995f%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861220815539191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=J%2B%2FPeTW0%2BBkSPX4IKu7m%2BfogxHYNSyNNGRIap4o%2FDls%3D&reserved=0


Appendix A 
 

15 
 

Internal promotion 
As we approached the holiday season in July 2021, staff were reminded of the need to 
use the Out of Office messages on email accounts.  The reminder highlight the need to 
ensure messages were bilingual and included the electronic version of the desk stands 
developed when the Standards were implemented. 
 

 
 
 
Welsh Language Strategy development 
The Welsh Language Standards require the council to develop a 5-year Welsh Language 
Strategy that sets out how it intends to promote the use of the Welsh language, and 
facilitate the use of the Welsh language more widely in the county borough. 
 
The strategy must include a target (in percentage terms) for increasing or maintaining 
the number of Welsh speakers in the area by the end of the 5-year period.  In addition, 
the strategy must include a statement setting out how the target will be met.  The 
strategy must be reviewed and renewed at the end of each 5-year period (Standard 
145).  
 
In developing the new strategy the council undertook a range of evidence gathering and 
pre-consultation engagement activities to develop a revised set of actions of the draft 5-
year Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027.  These actions will enable us to plan how we 
will promote the Welsh language and facilitate the use of the language locally to increase 
the Welsh speaking population over the next five years. 
 
Activities include: 

- A review of legislative requirements 
- A review of external reports and guidance, including Welsh Government’s 

‘Cymraeg 2050: our plan for 2021 to 2026’, and the Welsh Language 
Commissioner’s guidance ‘Standards relating to promoting the Welsh 
Language’ 

- A review of the Council’s current Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 2017-2022 

Page 32



Appendix A 
 

16 
 

- An analysis of local and national datasets 
- Engagement with service delivery managers within the Council 
- Engagement with Caerphilly Welsh Language Forum and Welsh in Education Forum 

 
We worked in collaboration with our partners to develop a strategy that builds on our 
past successes, meets the needs of the Welsh speakers and learners in the county 
borough, meets the legislative requirements and most importantly, is meaningful, 
appropriate and achievable for everyone involved.  A full list of the partners involved can 
be viewed in the strategy. 
 
The strategy was approved by Cabinet in March 2022 and was published on our website 
on 31 March 2022.  To view the strategy and the supporting appendices please click on 
the following link:  5-Year Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027. 
 
At the end of each 5-year period, the council must assess the extent to which the 
strategy has been followed and the target met.  The assessment, which must be 
published, must include the number of Welsh speakers in the area and the list of 
activities that have been undertaken to meet the aims of the strategy (Standard 146).  
Progress against the 5-Year Welsh Language Strategy 2017-2022 can be seen in the 
report in Appendix 1. 
 
 
Careers Wales Video and Careers Wales – World of Work with YG Cwm 
Rhymni 
Over the past 12 months we have been working closely with Careers Wales to try and 
build links with our secondary schools, raising awareness of careers with the council but 
in particular how important having Welsh language skills is in the workplace. 
 
The Senior Policy Officer – Equalities and Welsh Language recorded two videos (Welsh 
and English versions) to be used in our secondary schools during the lockdown period. 
 
https://twitter.com/cwcardiffbea3/status/1397210046036054020?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66
NCX1SQClnw 
 
In November 2021, the Senior Policy Officer – Equalities and Welsh Language was 
invited to attend a ‘World of Work Day’ at Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni.  The day consisted 
of delivering a number of presentations during the school day to Year 11 students, 
promoting career opportunities with the council.  The presentation focussed in particular 
on how important and valuable having and using Welsh language skills are in the 
workplace.  Students were encouraged to wear the ‘iaith gwaith’ orange speech bubble 
badges and lanyards to show employers and members of the public that they can speak 
Welsh.  
 
https://twitter.com/cwcardiffbea3/status/1456234952459227147?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66
NCX1SQClnw 

  

Page 33

https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy-(Draft)
https://twitter.com/cwcardiffbea3/status/1397210046036054020?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw
https://twitter.com/cwcardiffbea3/status/1397210046036054020?s=21&t=iRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcwcardiffbea3%2Fstatus%2F1456234952459227147%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7Ccd729c417aa446858b3108da237f3c90%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861326622031901%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IEkG8fDXglpDn%2ByFKHWTE2E1XlyG2kW4w8wcc1WxPNE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcwcardiffbea3%2Fstatus%2F1456234952459227147%3Fs%3D21%26t%3DiRllpOpOqS66NCX1SQClnw&data=05%7C01%7CCULLIMA%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7Ccd729c417aa446858b3108da237f3c90%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637861326622031901%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IEkG8fDXglpDn%2ByFKHWTE2E1XlyG2kW4w8wcc1WxPNE%3D&reserved=0


Appendix A 
 

17 
 

The Position of the Welsh Language 2016-2020 
In the Welsh Language Commissioner’s 5-year Report the council were included as a 
case study in relation to the work undertaken to develop a definitive list of place names 
to be used on a national level.  The list is yet to be formally agreed by the Council but 
will be taken through the required committees for adoption in due course.  To view the 
case study please click on the following link: 
 
The Position of the Welsh Language 2016–20: Welsh Language Commissioner’s 5-year 
Report 
 
 
General promotion 
We promoted and encouraged Welsh speakers and learners to subscribe to the council’s 
Stay Connected bulletin, receiving the council’s news in the language of their choice. 
 
Are you learning Welsh and looking for opportunities to read Welsh text?  
 
Subscribe to our free email alert service, Stay Connected.  It will help you to expand 
your Welsh vocabulary and improve your understanding of Welsh text by reading news 
alerts in Welsh.  
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/UKCAERPHILLY_CY/subscriber/new 
 
 
Welsh Language Statistics 2020-2021 
Number of translation requests received…………………………….3,017 
Number of translation requests sent externally……………………352 
Number of words translated in-house…………………………………852,844 
Number of words translated externally……………………………….1,376,596 
Number of Welsh language courses advertised / offered.........69 
Number of staff learning Welsh………………………………………….35 
Number of Welsh Language Investigations since 2016…………13 

  

Page 34

https://www.welshlanguagecommissioner.wales/media/eivh4ppj/5-year-reportwlc20162020-final-20-10-21.pdf
https://www.welshlanguagecommissioner.wales/media/eivh4ppj/5-year-reportwlc20162020-final-20-10-21.pdf
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/UKCAERPHILLY_CY/subscriber/new


Appendix A 
 

18 
 

 

Correspondence 
3 emails received in Welsh but only 2 out of the 3 were responded to in Welsh.  
(Standards 1, 4, 5, 6, 7) 
 
Action taken: 
On receipt of the third email, it was initially sent to the translation team to translate the 
customer’s request.  The email was then sent to the relevant department.  Unfortunately, 
the email address used to forward the email to was not being monitored and therefore 
the email was left unanswered.  The issue has been raised with the Assistant Director to 
address this with their teams. 
 
 
Telephone Calls 
3 telephone calls received.  All three were answered bilingually, however the member of 
staff noted on all three calls that they are learning Welsh and can transfer the caller to a 
Welsh speaker.  When transferred the call was lost on all three occasions. 
 
Action taken: 
The phone line has been fully tested and the system is working correctly.  When a call is 
transferred the line is silent, as we do not have any hold music, this is sometimes 
mistaken by callers as being disconnected.   
 
We recently undertook 3 recruitment exercises for additional Welsh speakers (which 
were also advertised on Welsh job sites).  Unfortunately, on the first two occasions we 
failed to appoint due to lack of interest.  However we are pleased that on the third 
recruitment round we were able to appoint a fluent Welsh speaker. 
 
 
Website and Social Media 
 1 School Counselling document was not available in Welsh. 
 2 documents and two application forms were on the website, but did not have the 

required statement on them stating they were also available in Welsh. 
 1 Council Tax form was not available in Welsh. 
 3 out of 15 webpages treated the Welsh less favourably. 
 10 out of 10 tweets available in Welsh, but 3 treated the Welsh language less 

favourably. 
 9 out of 10 Facebook posts available in Welsh and 2 out of the 10 treated the Welsh 

less favourably. 
 
Action taken: 
 The School Counselling document was translated and the webpage updated.  The 

document is now available in Welsh and English. 
 The documents, application forms and relevant webpages were updated, and the 

required statement is on them stating that they are also available in Welsh. 
 The Council Tax form was translated and the webpage updated 

3. Commissioner’s Assurance Report 2019-2020 
 

Evidence of compliance and progress: 

Page 35



Appendix A 
 

19 
 

 Errors on the 3 webpages were identified, corrected and updated. 
 The issues with the 3 tweets appears to be a copy and paste error with line checking 

eligibility omitted.  The team has been reminded of the importance of accuracy and 
they should ensure that the Welsh language post mirrors the contents of the English 
post. 

 The first Facebok post was only available in English and the second post included a 
link, which took you to English only information.  Both instances were down to human 
error and the team have been reminded of the importance of accuracy and ensuring 
that the text is available in both languages before posting. 

 
 
Recruitment 
A forward work plan has been developed to address a number of urgent matters relating 
to recruitment, including compliance with the Welsh Language Standards.  Actions 
required have been scheduled to be completed by the 31st March 2022 
 
 
General Comments 
We recognise that over the past 2 years, our focus has been on dealing with the 
pandemic and adapting our services to be delivered via different methods.  In doing so 
our priorities necessarily changed and we would have to recognise that our efforts may 
not have been focused as much as we would have liked on ensuring that our services are 
delivered bilingually and in accordance with the Welsh Language Standards.  We would 
like to assure you that, as we recover from the pandemic, our desire to support the 
language is as strong as ever.  In light of the non-compliance highlighted in the annual 
audit and the need to get services back to functioning business as usual, we are aiming 
to launch an engagement and awareness raising campaign around the Welsh language, 
equalities and consultation in March. 

 
  

Page 36



Appendix A 
 

20 
 

4. Complaints from the Public 
 
Welsh Language Commissioner Investigations 
We use this section of the report to detail any Welsh Language Commissioner 
Investigations.  For the duration of 2021-2022, we received 0 new investigations for the 
third year in succession. 
 
Members of the public can view the Council’s Complaints Procedure for dealing with 
complaints made through the medium of Welsh via our website using the following link: 
 

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-
policies/Equalities/Welsh-language-Standards 
 
 
Complaints: 
The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 has specific actions, which commits 
the Council to use its service requests and complaints data to: 
 
 Equality Objective 1 – Action 5 & Equality Objective 4 – Action 5 

Identify service needs of specific user groups; what barriers prevent access, and 
what actions are required to remove those barriers 

 
 Equality Objective 1 – Action 8 

Collect equalities monitoring information for compliments and complaints 
 
During 2021-2022, 1 complaint and 6 service requests were received relating to the 
Welsh language. 
 
The 1 complaint received raised multiple issues: 
 
 Electoral Services letter contained an English web link in the Welsh version. 
 Complaints officer could not deal with complaint in Welsh and they want their 

language preference recorded for future complaints. 
 On the Complaints webpage there is only an email address as a contact, there should 

be a telephone number and a text phone number. 
 Colin the Chabot does not work. 
 
Action taken: 
 Electoral Services acknowledged the error and will correct for all future 

correspondence. 
 Electoral Services have appointed a Welsh-speaking member of staff to deal with 

telephone calls.  If no Welsh–speaking member of staff is available, a call back from a 
Welsh-speaking member of staff will be arranged with the caller. 

 Contact details on the Complaints webpage reviewed and updated where necessary. 
 Explanation given that the Chabot was initially for the purposes of dealing with Covid-

19 enquiries.  The Chabot will be trained in due course to deal with complaint 
enquiries. 

  

Page 37

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-language-Standards
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-language-Standards


Appendix A 
 

21 
 

Service Requests: 
The 5 service requests were made up of the following: 
 

No. Detail(s) of Service Request(s) Resolution 

SR1 
New road sign erected which is in 
breach of the Welsh language 
Standards, English text is first 

New sign erected 

SR2 
Road sign corrected but now has a 
typo in it 

Road sign corrected 

SR3 
English address showing on Welsh 
correspondence from Electoral 
Services 

Entry on the LLPG system has been updated 
and the Welsh name will be displayed on 
future correspondence. 

SR4 

Member of the public not happy 
that road signs are bilingual Welsh 
first and that they receive bilingual 
documentation. 

Explained the legal requirement for local 
authorities to comply with Welsh Language 
Standards, which include road signage and 
documentation.  Provided contact details of the 
Welsh Language Commissioner should, they 
wish to take the issue further. 

SR5 

Social media post retweeted from 
Public Health Wales regarding a 
possible TB Case in a Caerphilly 
county borough school has typos in 
the Welsh text.  Also questioned 
the lack of recruitment information 
in Welsh on the Council’s website 

Informed the member of the public that the 
post belonged to Public Health Wales but that 
we would notify them of the errors.  In regards 
to the recruitment information, we explained 
that the software was awaiting an upgrade, 
which would support both Welsh and English 
languages. 

 
 
General Definitions 
Corporate complaints are those that are due to failure of process or failure to operate 
Council policy correctly.  These are complaints that could ultimately be forwarded to the 
Public Services Ombudsman or Welsh Language Commissioner, for example. 
 
Code of conduct issues around staff behaviour or attitude are dealt with via internal HR 
processes.  Equalities and Welsh language complaints are however something of a 
hybrid, in that a failure of process may be as a result of the attitudes or opinions of a 
staff member towards a particular group for example. 
 
 
Complaints and Service Requests by Directorate 

DIRECTORATE COMPLAINTS SERVICE REQUESTS 

Economy and Environment 0 2 

Education & Corporate Services 1 3 

Social Services & Housing 0 0 

TOTALS 1 5 

 
  

Page 38



Appendix A 
 

22 
 

5. Staff Language Skills 
 
The ability to record Welsh language skills in terms of staff data and analysis is an 
integral part of the payroll system within Caerphilly County Borough Council.  Financial 
year-end figures to 31 March 2022 are shown below and overleaf.  The skills levels are 
measured in accordance with the language skills guidelines provided by the Association 
of Language Testers in Europe (ALTE).  On pages 21-23 of this report, you will see 
details of the language skills of staff per service area measures on a scale of 5 being 
‘Proficient’ down to ‘No Skills’. 
 

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 No Skills 

Proficiency Advanced Intermediate Foundation Entry Level - 

 
Compared with last year, again we have recorded a slight increase in the number of 
Welsh speakers within our workforce all directorates. 
 
At the time of reporting last year, the total number of staff and Welsh speakers within 
the organisation was as follows compared with this this reporting year; 
 
Council Totals for 2020-2021 

Total Staff Welsh Speakers % 

8296 1825 21.99 

 
Council Totals for 2021-2022 

Total Staff Welsh Speakers % 

8348 1968 23.57 

 
 
LINGUISTIC PROFILE OF WORKFORCE - WELSH LANGUAGE ABILITY BY 
SERVICE AREA AND FLUENCY AS AT 31 MARCH 2022 
 
i) OVERALL STAFF FIGURES 
              2020-2021      2021-2022 

Economy and 
Environment 

Total 
Staff 

Welsh 
Speakers 

% Total 
Staff 

Welsh 
Speakers 

% 

Community & Leisure 
Services 

716 125 17.45 1349 226 16.75 

Infrastructure 227 35 15.41 220 34 15.45 

Property Services 63 18 28.57 62 19 30.64 

Public Protection 159 34 21.38 155 41 26.45 

Regeneration & Planning 332 49 14.75 319 63 19.74 

Total 1483 261 17.59 2075 376 18.12 

  

Page 39



Appendix A 
 

23 
 

         2020-2021         2021-2022 

Education & Corporate 
Services 

Total 
Staff 

Welsh 
Speakers 

% Total 
Staff 

Welsh 
Speakers 

% 

Business Improvement Services 995 150 15.07 29 11 37.93 

Corporate Finance 156 23 14.74 157 24 15.28 

Customer & Digital Services 126 24 19.04 133 30 22.55 

Education Planning & Strategy 149 37 24.83 0 0 0 

Learning Education & Inclusion 462 85 18.39 460 91 19.78 

Legal & Governance 60 10 16.66 59 12 20.33 

People Services  100 29 29.00 101 28 27.72 

Schools 3311 1004 30.32 3323 1062 31.95 

Transformation Services 0 0 0 717 131 18.27 

Total 5068 1302 25.69 4761 1333 27.99 

 
 

           2020-2021      2021-2022 

Social Services & Housing Total 
Staff 

Welsh 
Speakers 

% Total 
Staff 

Welsh 
Speakers 

% 

Adult Services 1104 141 12.30 1077 144 13.37 

Caerphilly Cares 0 0 0 17 5 29.41 

Caerphilly Homes  480 60 13.14 486 60 12.34 

Children Services  324 83 23.20 332 100 30.12 

Joint Workforce Development 
Team 

5 1 33.33 4 1 25.00 

Total 1906 285 14.21 1910 309 16.17 

 
NOTES 
 The figures per service area for Total Staff and Welsh Speakers do not equal the 

overall total per Directorate due to some members of staff having more than one post 
within the organisation and those posts are within different service areas. 

 

 As with previous reports, the figures in 5i) above are the total number of people per 
directorate who have completed the Linguistic Skills form noting Welsh Language 
skills. 
 

 The figures shown in 5ii) to 5iv) that follow refer to levels of fluency of Welsh 
speakers per service area and cannot be compared directly with the totals shown in 
5i) because for example, in Corporate Finance (the second section below in 5ii) the 
"Level 4" column refers to a staff member who can read, speak, understand and write 
at Level 4, not 3 different members of staff. 

  

Page 40



Appendix A 
 

24 
 

ii) Economy and Environment 
 

Community & Leisure 
Services 

5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening /Speaking 22 10 9 24 146 13 2 

Understanding 22 15 11 23 123 28 4 

Writing 22 6 14 29 73 73 9 

Total Staff 226       
 

 

Infrastructure 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 1 0 1 2 25 3 2 

Understanding 0 2 1 2 25 2 2 

Writing 1 0 1 3 19 5 5 

Total Staff 34       
 

 

Property Services 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 0 0 1 2 25 3 2 

Understanding 0 2 1 2 25 2 2 

Writing 0 0 0 3 19 5 5 

Total Staff 19       
 
 

Public Protection 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 3 0 4 6 27 1 0 

Understanding 5 2 3 5 24 2 0 

Writing 3 0 3 3 21 10 1 

Total Staff 41       
 

 

Regeneration & Planning 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 9 1 1 13 36 3 0 

Understanding 9 3 1 9 33 6 2 

Writing 10 0 1 7 30 12 3 

Total Staff 63       

  

Page 41



Appendix A 
 

25 
 

iii) SOCIAL SERVICES and HOUSING 
 

Adult Services 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 12 11 3 9 97 12 0 

Understanding 14 13 2 5 83 23 4 

Writing 14 9 1 10 46 58 6 

Total staff  144       
 

 

Caerphilly Cares 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 

Understanding 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 

Writing 0 0 0 0 3 2 0 

Total staff  5       
 

 

Caerphilly Homes 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 3 3 6 5 39 4 0 

Understanding 2 7 2 1 30 15 3 

Writing 1 4 4 3 15 29 4 

Total staff  60       
 
 

Children Services 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 5 5 6 3 74 6 1 

Understanding 7 7 3 8 58 15 2 

Writing 6 5 4 6 42 33 4 

Total staff  100       
 

 

Joint Workforce 
Development Team 

5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 

Understanding 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 

Writing 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 

Total staff  1       
 
 

  

Page 42



Appendix A 
 

26 
 

iv) EDUCATION AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

Business Improvement 
Services 

5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 5 0 0 1 5 0 0 

Understanding 5 0 0 1 5 0 0 

Writing 5 0 0 1 3 1 1 

Total staff 11       
 

 

Corporate Finance 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 0 2 0 3 15 4 0 

Understanding 0 2 0 2 14 6 0 

Writing 0 2 0 2 9 11 0 

Total staff 24       
 

 

Customer & Digital 
Services 

5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 3 1 1 1 23 1 0 

Understanding 3 2 1 0 17 3 4 

Writing 3 1 1 0 12 9 4 

Total staff 30       
 
 

Learning Education & 
Inclusion 

5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 6 5 0 8 71 1 0 

Understanding 7 3 3 4 61 11 2 

Writing 7 1 4 4 47 25 3 

Total staff 91       
 

 

Legal & Governance 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 0 1 0 2 8 0 1 

Understanding 1 0 1 1 8 1 0 

Writing 0 1 0 2 7 2 0 

Total staff 12       
 
 

People Services 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 1 1 1 7 16 2 0 

Understanding 1 3 1 4 16 3 0 

Writing 0 2 1 5 11 9 0 

Total staff 28       
 

Page 43



Appendix A 
 

27 
 

Schools 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 203 50 38 192 556 19 4 

Understanding 203 65 79 157 464 63 31 

Writing 205 36 40 181 340 212 48 

Total staff 1062       
 

Transformation Services 5 4 3 2 1 No 
Skills 

Undisclosed 

Listening / Speaking 3 5 5 16 91 11 0 

Understanding 5 6 7 14 73 25 1 

Writing 5 1 5 10 41 65 4 

Total staff  131       

  

Page 44



Appendix A 
 

28 
 

6. Welsh Medium Training Provision 
 
Caerphilly CBC has provided conversational Welsh courses for staff and elected members 
since 2001.  Courses are also accessible to members of the public and staff members 
from partner organisations to attend.  The courses range from basic taster courses for 
beginners to courses, which cater for those who are now fluent Welsh speakers.  All 
courses moved to being held online during the initial lockdown, and from September 
2020 onwards, all courses now run online.   
 
The data for the courses offered and attended by Caerphilly CBC staff for the academic 
year 2021-2022 is as follows; 
 

COURSE  
OFFERED 

NUMBER OF 
COURSES OFFERED 

NUMBER OF STAFF 
ATTENDING 

30 Week  58 33 

Online 10 Hour Course 1 0 

Online 120 Hour Self Study Course 1 1 

Say Something in Welsh - Online 
Welsh Course 

1 1 

Summer School 1 1 

Residential Course 7 1 

Withdrawn N/A 1 

 
 
Caerphilly Staff Figures – 2016-2022 
 

Academic  
Year 

Year 
courses 

Taster 
Courses 

Total 
Learners 

(Numbers 
withdrawn) 

2016 – 2017 45 14 59 (3) 
2017 – 2018 50 61 111 (4) 
2018 – 2019 53 91 144 (6) 
2019 – 2020 62 185 223 (0) 
2020 – 2021 27 219 246 (2) 
2021 – 2022 35 - 35 (1) 

TOTALS 272 570 818 (16) 
 
During 2021-2022, staff were given 2 opportunities to attend a Welsh Language 
Awareness course, which disappointingly only attracted 10 attendees across the two 
sessions.  This course must be provided for staff in line with Standard 132; 
 
You must provide training courses so that your employees can develop –  
(a) awareness of the Welsh language (including awareness of its history and its role in 
Welsh culture);  
(b) an understanding of the duty to operate in accordance with the Welsh language 
standards; 
(c) an understanding of how the Welsh language can be used in the workplace. 
 

Page 45



Appendix A 
 

29 
 

The Welsh Language Awareness courses can be very effective in changing attitudes and 
explore the following points: 
 

1. Why do we need to give attention to the Welsh language? 
2. What do we need to know about the language and its speakers? 
3. How can we act in a way that facilitates the use of the Welsh language? 

 
Staff who attended the sessions gave very positive feedback and a selection of the 
feedback is below: 
 
a) I really enjoyed this afternoon’s session with Huw but cannot believe the poor 

uptake! 
b) Huw was both informative and entertaining, providing light humour and a brief history 

of the Welsh language.  I would recommend this course to others.  Thank you. 
c) I surprised myself with how much I enjoyed the course and the confidence it has 

given me to practice the little Welsh I know and the enthusiasm to learn more.  I will 
be recommending the course to others. 

d) I really enjoyed the course.  It was informative and interesting and has provided me 
with the motivation to continue learning Welsh.  It was also good to listen to the 
experiences of others and hear about their exposure to the Welsh language. 

 
An awareness session facilitated by Menter Iaith Caerffili was also delivered to the Youth 
Service entitled The Welsh Language in Youth Work and was attended by 8 people. 
 
In accordance with Standard 128, the council must provide training to staff through the 
medium of Welsh in the following areas: 
 
You must provide training in Welsh in the following areas, if you provide such training in 
English –  
(a)   recruitment and interviewing;  
(b)   performance management;  
(c)   complaints and disciplinary procedures;  
(ch) induction;  
(d)   dealing with the public; and  
(dd) health and safety.  
 
No requests from staff were received for any of the above listed courses to be delivered 
through the medium of Welsh, therefore there are no staff training figures recorded.  
The above information is published here to provide continuity with previous reports. 
  

Page 46



Appendix A 
 

30 
 

7. Recruiting to Empty Posts 
 

A total of 850 new and vacant posts advertised since 31st March 2021 were categorised 
as posts where: 
 

(i) Welsh language skills were essential 
 

10 
 

(ii) Welsh language skills needed to be learnt when appointed to the post 
 

24 
 
Welsh language training courses have been available to all staff and elected 
members free of charge since the 2001-2002 academic years (see Section 3) 

 
(iii) Welsh language skills were desirable, 

 
810 

 
(iv) Welsh language skills were not necessary 

 
6 

 
The Welsh Language Skills Assessments in relation to vacant or new posts are 
undertaken as required by Standard 136, and have been recorded by Human Resources 
since October 2016.  The assessment and supporting evidence then forms part of the 
business case that is required to gain permission to fill a vacant post or create a new 
one. 
 
A Welsh Language Skills Assessment is completed for all vacant or new posts, which are 
advertised as Welsh desirable as a standard requirement.  The assessment undertaken 
determines whether any new or vacant posts should be advertised as Welsh essential, 
in accordance with the job role and contact with the public. 
 
 
Progress Update 

Progress has been made.  The recruitment system (iTrent) has been updated to improve 
end user experience.  The revised English version is live but has been subject to changes 
following feedback, which has led to a slight delay in the translation process, which is 
now being progressed. 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet held on 6th April.
	4 Cabinet held on 13th April.
	5 Cabinet Forward Work Programme.
	6 Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 2021-2022.
	Appendix A.


